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THIS IS THE OLD MCPHFRSON HOUSE, the first hotel in the city of McPhex‘ son Whlch stood where the Grand Building now stanas.
the addition was built onto the original structure in 1878.

This picture shows it after

The smaller part of the b uilding was moved to McPherson from King City and was opened for business in June,

1872, by William West, one of the original Ashtabula colony. - In 1872 it was pur chased by B. E. Smith, who ran i'l. 1Amti} his dmu_h July 17, 1886, His wife and sons
continued ‘the business until February, 1887, when they sold out to W. J. Bell. It was then moved to Ash street until it burned a few years later. The pioneers shown
in the picture apparently were guests at the time. It is recorded that Eli Williams, D. P. Lindsay, G. L. McCourt and 1. A, Colburn were among many of the early
day businessmen who slept in this house: . ’ ’
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velopment d,lld organized spons
for all.

From one i’igid course ~which
every student must follow to sev-
eral courses, each flexible enough
with its numerous electives to fit
individual dlfterences dnd abili-
tles .

“ During the more tndn 70 yeais
that spanned these extremes, the
vouth of the community knew ad-
venture, thrills, h(—‘al‘L'bl eak, pride
in achievement, rom.mce intrigue,
fun, and some hard work.

The first high school class was
graduated in 1883, .,,undel the
leadership of K. W. Hulse, and
had four members: Pearl “Shirk.
Stella Myers, Gex{ti‘ude Christian
and Randa Waitt.

The. smallest = class, of one,
Charles Webster, finished in 1886,
and the largest, of 127 members,
carried the honors in 1937. A
total ot 2,645 students have com-
pleted the high school courses.

Anmong outhtandm'j personali-
ties of teachers of earhel days
were Lyda Chatterton, Sally Dav-
idson, Addison Lundlum, Hettie
Brockett, J. D. King, Nora White,
and Mame Curry, whose names
bring varied and vivid memories.

In 1891 the 11 members of the
graduating class invited the 38
former graduates to a banquet
and a get-together, where the Mc-
Pherson High School Alumni As-
sociation was organized. With
few exceptions, if any, this or-
ganization has held a meeting
every May since., Xach clasgs in
iurn provides entertalament for
the group to welcome the succeed-
ing class, to renew old friendships
and associations, and to compare
achievements of the past ten,
twenty or thirty vears.

One of the institutions of early
school days was Speaking Day,
which came once a month on Fri-
day afternoon. HKvery one put on
his best or nexl to best clothes,
with the addition of crisp ruffled
aprons for the girls. On2 by one,
pupils came to the platform in
the front of the room, made a
bow, and recited a memorized
“piece.”” Amnother bew, and one
was safely back in his seat, the
ordeal over for four weeks.

The fourth grader who repeat-
ed Shelley’s “To a Skylark” really
deserved a medal. In.the upper
grades ‘“Whoa, Nebuchadnezzar”’
and “Curtew Shall ‘Not Ring To-
night” were populay favorites.

A little girl living-on East Kuc-
lid always brought teacher a pink
geranium Dblossom to  wear that
special day. Her progress through
the lower grades could he follow-
ed by observing the teachers who
wore that particular pink flower.

If you were in schoeol in 1893,
>ome of your work was doubtless
displayed in ihe ac¢res of school
exhibits at the Columbian Kxpo-
sition at Chicago. and if you were
in the high school, vou shared in
the honor of receiving -a hand-
some medal and. the . only blue
ribbon award to a Kansas school.
Later honors in.music, = debate,
sports,
no greater thrill: than .did this
first one. The bound volume of
high school work :that won the
award is now in the State Histori-
cal Society files in Topeka.
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and scholarship  carrvied:

Elation and chagrin came from
the custom of marking the pupil’s
report card with his rank. in his

class. Any. rank above ten
brought satisfaction, but alas for

bottom
When
a card

those who stood near t}‘
of a class of 40 or more.
one girl  brought homse
CYRauk 1,7
heard with mingled 1)1'1de and
amusemént her announcement,
“I'm the rankest one in the clasg.”
Mention of the band brings
happy memories of the band room
of the lot, of the
trips taken and the concerts given,.
and all the jolly hours and hard
work of practice and performan‘ce,
For

high school students in
whose lives romance played an
especially important part, there

were many spots suitable for a
rendezvous with the chosen one.
In the old high school building a
just inside the east
entrance was a favorite. or un-
der the stairs that led to the sky
parlor; in the present Wicker-
sham building the north landing
under the kindly eye of Urania,
the south Tanding with the ap-
proval of Diana, and even the
radiator just outside the office
door. wasg convenient. TIn the pre-
gsent high school building the
long halls and various landings
offer trysting places for all.

How necessary it  became to
sharpen a pencil, or go to the dic-
tionary. or get a book from the
library shelves just at the time
a particular some one had a sgim-
ilar need.

Other interesting  experiences
might include helping to ring the
big bell in the old brick building,
commencement in  the ‘“‘Opera
House,” the strange behavior of
the sub-freshman class, Dbeing
chosen as queen or atttendant for
All Schools ‘Day, being elected to
the Honor Society, a crucial
bhasketball game, the last lap in
the relay race, tacky day, joining
the Spizzeringtum Club, receiving
a football letter; participation in
a special program or the school
play.

Perhaps  such

recollections of

] =chool days seem unrelated to the

three R’s and their modern equi-

valeuts. But didn’t some one say,
“Don’t let your studies interfere
 with your education”?

ine, Women, And Song
At Fuller’s Ranch

The firsi permanent settler
came to  McPherson County in

1855, when Charles Fuller start- |
ed his ranch along the Santa Fe
trail, on Turkey Creek, seven

miles east of McPherson.

Fuller’s ranch was noteworthy
not mily as a place to stop and
as a cowboy rendesvouz in later
years, but for the fact that two
vomen were there. The two were
French girls, Clara and Norma
Noma, who cooked and served
meals.

Barly travelers on the trail re-
commended Fuller’'s ranch as of-
fering = good accommodations,
good liguor,
with the scarcity of women,
too, made thie ranch- a byword
among the pioneers.

“her parents |

and good tood -and
that, !

its opera house and: its first was
built: in. 1880. ~Although it was
built primarily. for the Bank of
McPherson, th'e second floor was
arranged for an opera house.

This building still stands.

the present home of the McPher-
It

son and Citizens: State Bank.
iy ome wf the oldes 5
Main Street.
It Almost Burned :

The old opera house narrowly
escaped -destruction in. the great
fire of 1883 which wiped out the
west side of Main  Street from
Marlin to Euclid, but its
brick construction withstood the
heat from the terrible holocaust.”

The town was growing. The
time had arrived when McPherson
could support an - opera house
which was built from the ground
up as an opera house. -On March
25, 1888, the Opera House Com-
pany, E. G. Clark, president, held
a meeting and decided to build
just such a place

Construction started almost im-
mediately. It was an impressive
structure, showing great faith in
the future of McPherson. Its cost
was estimated at $42,000.

On August 2, 1888, with con-
struction almost completed, the
land and building were mortgaged

building’'s 990
to overflowing,

For this special occasion the
Modoc Club of Topeka was im-
ported to present the entertain-
ment, an opera’ entitled “Chimes
of Normandy.”" Harly Daily Re-
publican ~ stories = gushed  with
praise of the show, which. includ-
ad several local ﬂ,ltlbtb “spotted”
in the cast.

On April 24, 1889, the ope
house also becc\me the ('oulthouse

seats were filled

when all 0111((3,5 jneluding  the
hasement, were rented by the
county for. $1,400 a year. The

theatre section, naturally, was re-
served for show purposes. ’

Through that -building, in the
next few years, passed some of the
great entertainers of the time, a
star-studded cast of artists. Many
of the great, near great and to-
]b(, great trod. the boards.

TAn ]mpressn’e Building

'The building itself was impres-
sive. Old-timers say that it could
be seen for mlles auosb the Kan-
sas prairie. - Before the court-
house was built, it was the biggest
building in the city, the show piece
of central. Kansas.

Richard Dale acqu‘ired the prop-
erty on May 13, 1892, for $21.-
1689.70, and held it until July 7.
1927. At that time it was pur-
c¢hased by W. P.. Barker, who
"mortgaged the property for §$8,-
i500, and still owns the building
(today. ‘

Now filled -with apaltments a
furniture store, a restaurant and
| the Mac Theatre,
"house is somewhat, the worse for
time and wear. Many have made
{the suggestion that it is an eye-
sore, that it should be torn down.
 Ghosts must rattle their chains
and. turn over iu.'th@ir" eraves at
the thought. ; '

It is |

“sturdy |

for $18,;812.50.
Opened Jan. 28, 1889

Jan. 28, 1889, was the big day,
the grand opening. Tickets for
the opening performances sold
from 50 cents to $1.75 and the

the old opera
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By L. E. Lindell

Early in the 70’s when the pion-
ecers started settling in what is
now McPherson County rumors
spread like a prairie fire over the
treeless plains that ‘““the railroads
are building ilylt() McPherson.”

Since that first rumor the rail-
roads have not only built into the
county but have played a big part
in building the county to its pres-
ent high position in Kansas agri-
culture and industry. They were
instrumental in opening up new
towns and communities and add-
ing to the material wealth and
prosperity of this part of Kansas.

The railroads had a feeble and
shaky start from the time stock
was sold to the pioneers to help
finance the first rails into Me-
Pherson County. The records show
that on April 1, 1872, the city of
Lindsborg asked the county com-
missioners to buy stock in the
new Salina, Sedgwick & South-
ern Railway Company to the ex-
tent of $150,000. The commis-
sioners turned down the Linds-
borg request, so the first effort
to finance the rails into the county
fell through. This line was to run

from Salina to Lindsborg, Me-
Pherson, King City, Lake View

and then on to Sedgwick City.
Ask For Bond Issue .

The citizens of Lindsborg were
not to be shouted down by the
commissioners refusal, so two
months later, on June 5, 1872,
sixty Lindshorg voters signed a
petition calling for a vote on a
$150,000 bond issue to buy stock
in the proposed railroad from the
north. The commissioners didn’t
act upon the petition at once, and
one month later, on July 1, the
Lindshorg voters withdrew their
petition and submitted a second
one calling for an election to vote
on a $200,000 bond issue to buy
stock in another proposed rail-
road, to be known as the Salina,
Atlanta and Raymond Railway.
This line was to extend south
from Salina to Lindsborg, New
Gottland, McPherson, King City
and on south. A branch line was
to extend from Lindsborg west to
Kllsworth.

The pressure was applied to the
board of commissioners and on
July 30, 1872, the bond election
carried. On January 6, 1873, the
commissioners were authorized to
turn the $200,000 over to the
railroad but on February 24 the
authorization was withdrawn. The
““go ahead’” signal was given the
board on March 17 and the county
clerk was ordered to issue $75,000
in bonds and deposit the sum with
the state treasurer in Topeka.
Seeks To Recall Bonds

On July 28, 1873, the county
attorney, for some. = reagon oOr
other, wanted the $75,000 in rail-
road bonds returned from the
state treasurer’s office but the
county commission did not agree,
however, on August 11 the bonds
were recalled from Topeka be-
cause the railroad did not fulfill
its part of the contract and by
September 1 all the bonds had
been returned. This was the end
of the first real attempt to build
the steel rails into the county.

Not until January 6, 1879, was
another attempt to take fire to
get the tracks laid into the coun-
ty. Smoky Hill Township voters
wanted to subscribe to the capitol
stock of the Salina & Southwest-
ern Railway, which had agreed to
huild a line from Salina into and
through Smoky Hill Township at
$4.000 per mile for every mile
built into the township. The pro-
posed line was to pass through
Lindsborg. The petition request-
ing the purchase of the stock in
the company was signed by John
A. Swenson and 108 others.
Railroad From The Kast

On January 21 the same year a
request was received by the com-
missioners to subscribe to bonds

to the Marion & McPherson Rail-
way to the extent of $120,000.

This proposal figured out to $4,-
000 per mile from Marion to Mc-
Pherson. The proposal called for
the line to start from the Santa
Fe tracks at Florence, to be built
north to Marion and then west to
McPherson and eventually on west
to Lyons. The proposal said the
line was to be finished to Mc-
Pherson by October 1879 and to
extend to the west line of Mec-
Pherson County by October 1881.

This plan meant that two rail-
road proposals were hefore the
voters in the county. On Feb-
ruary 21, 1879, the Smoky Hill
Township bonds. passed by a vote
of 149 to 7. Four days later on
February 25 the election on the
Marion & Mc¢Pherson bonds car-
ried. On Au ust 28 McPherson
township offered a plan to issue
bhonds for $22,000 to help finance

the building . of, the Kansas &
Southwestern ;, Railway into the

township from Lindsborg.

| First Rails Laid

The Kansas, & Southwestern was
the first line to build into the
county and on August 1, 1879, the

new line and a depot had been
completed 3.685 miles into the
county from the north and the

county paid $14,740 to the new
company. On September 29, 1879,
McPherson township voted 268 to
50 to subscribe to bonds for the
Kansas & Southwestren.

By January 1, 1880, Kansas &
Southwestern had finished five
miles of fracks and built a depot
in McPherson township, for
which the company was paid $20,-
000. Complications arise, how-
ever, for on October 13, 1880,
the Santa Fe railway showed up
and wanted $120,000 for com-
nleting the railroad into McPher-

son from the east. The TUnion
gPaciric also wanted this money

yernerson’ was tne

Railroads Followed Early

Pioneers Into McPherson

for building into the county from
the north, hut the Santa Fe won
the bonds and the first Santa Fe
train arrived in McPherson from
the east in October of that year.
'The Kansas & Southwestern ulti-
mately became the Union Pacific
line from Salina to McPherson
and is operated as such today.

The Rock Island came into Mc-
Pherson at a later date. This
line started building its westward
tracks out of Herington to Liberal
via McPherson in March 1887 and
the line reached Liberal in De-
cember the same year.

Recalls Experiences

H. D. Zimmer, a pioneer engin-
eer on the Rock Island when it
was built through McPherson,
several years ago related some of
his experiences on the line in this
county.

“Fireman J. W. Burt and my-
self,” Zimmer recalled in a Rock
Island publication several years
ago, ‘‘stayed at the front of con-
struction between Herington and
Bucklin through McPherson in
charge of engine 401 and laid ev-
ery rail between these two points.
After completion of the line, I was
assigned to a passenger run with
engine 121. '

“The old Twombly truck, under
the tender of this engine, was a
source: of constant worry to ev-
eryone on the engine ‘and the
train. I believe it left its trade-
mark on every tie between Her-
ington and Pratt. It just wouldn't
stay on the track.”

Today McPherson County is
well supplied with rail connec-
tions in every direction. The lines
include the Santa Fe, Union Pa-
cific, Missouri Pacific and Rock
Island. Heavy tonnage of freight
is carried on these lines and to-
day modern Diesel streamliners
pull long passenger and freight
trains into McPherson. The rail-
roads have kept pace with the
development of the county. The
roads faced and conquered the
hardships the pioneer settlers en-
dured and today rail service is one
of the vital cogs in the future ex-
pansion and prosperity of this
area.

ELI P. WILLIAMS & GRAND-
SON, 1877—Founder with Cot-
tingham of McPherson Bank, now
the McPherson and Citizens Bank,
member state legislature.

Log Cabins Used
By Early Settlers

Finished lumber was a rarity
almost unknown to the settlers of
75 years ago. Logs went into
the making of the first frame
homes and were used in the
rough, with the bark on.

Cottonwood logs were used
mostly, being more plentiful than

other kinds. There were some
walnut, elm and ash on Sharps
Creek and a' few elm and ash,

some box elders and an abundance
of cottonwoods 'on the Smoky.
Boards, sawed from green cotton-
wood, warped badly.

Space between logs and boards
used in building a house were fill-
ed with a sort of plaster, a mix-
ture of dirt or- clay, sand and
water Sometimes the plaster
hardened too much, fell out, and
the whole task had to be done
over again.

Bugs, found under the bark of
some -of. the trees used in build-
ing the early homes became a

real nuisance. The bugs changed
their home from the bark of the

now

tree to heds, becoming what are
called bedbugs

The McPherson Republican is
so old that its early history is
shrouded in the mists of the days
that memory has forgot. Tew
definite tacts are available. There
are no complete files of the news-
paper of the early days of Mec-
Pherson and the writers of his-
tory do not at all agree.

They do, however, agree that
the first newspaper published in
‘MePherson
Messenger, published by the Yale
Brothers—A. W. and L. B. A
few of the early copies of the
Messenger are extant, including
Vo. 1, No.'1. This first issue is
dated December 19; 1872 but was |
actually published a week earlier,

‘according to a statement in that

issue.

This McPherson Mesqenf"er was
the beginning of The McPherson
Republican. . In May, 1874, its
name was changed to the Inde-
pendent and in December of 1879,
the name was again changed, this
time for good and it was thence-
forth called The Republican.

Old timers and some modern
writers disagree as to the direct
descent from the Messenger to
The Republican. 8. G. Mead, who
changed the name to Republican
in 1879 always maintained that
the descent was direct—Yale sold
to MeceClintick and McClintick to
Mead. Yet the many writings on
early days do not make it that
simple

The State Historical Society in
its August issue this year states:
“In August, 1873, A. W. Yale
went into other business. This
left 1.. B. the sole editor and pro-
prietor. On August 21, .1873,
the Messenger was closed out for
debt and bought by the McPher-

son Pll])llbhln" Company. On
December 13, 1873, it came under
the control of I. F. Clark and

George W. MceClintick.”

A copy of ithe McPherson Mes-
senger dated April 29, 1874, lists
it as Vol. 2, No. 10 and states it
i published by Clark and McClin-
tick. . This volume and number
show that nine issues must have
been skipped since Yale Brothers
first number.

A copy of the McPherson Inde-

pendent, dated ' June 17, 1874,
gives George W. McClintick as
proprietor and editor. Its vol-

nme number is two and its issue
number-is 17, which is an exact
continuation of the issue number
of the Messenger of April 29,
1874, which Clark and McClin-
tick “owned. Evidently MecClin-
tick considered his Independent
as the lineal descendent of the
Messenger.

In 1879 McClintick sold the In—
dependent to Mead and Preshry
and they changed the name to Re-
publican.  Their first issue was
Dec. 4, 1879. and bears the desig-
nation Vol. 7, No. 37. If the In-
dependent had skipped no issue
since 1874, its last number would
have been 42. The discrepancy
of ‘tive numbers can be account-
ed for by skips due to the early
practice of dropping an issue when
circumstances seemed to compel.

On the face of the above; the
continuous descent from the first
1"1ew'spape1‘,f the Messenger, was to
The Republican. The Republican
has bound volumes of the com-
plete issues from Dec. 11, 1879,
except

early days which did not get into

Some of

| their belts,

an occasional issue in the |

History Of Daily Republican Traced
Back To First Paper Here In 1872

the bound numbers.

In the early days many news-
papers were,sta’rted in McPher-
son and many fell by the wayside.
The existence of those that sur-
vived was: precarious and editor-
ghip changed frequently.  With
the advent of S. G. Mead, stabili-
ty began for at least one news-
paper. . During his ownership for
19 years many other newspapers
were born, flourished for a time
but so silently stole away that
there is no record of their de-
mise. In 1898 Mr. Mewd wrote:
“The MePherson Republican” now
owns the franchise, geod will and
subseription list ‘of 14 newspapers
which have sold<out to it or its
predecessors.”’

Among some of the interesting
hameg of early newspapers are
the Comet, the Leader, the In-
dustrial Liberator, the Champion,
the Enterprise, the Farmers  Ad-
vocate, the Press and the Vim.
them were independent
in politics and most were Repub-
lican. The Leader and the In-.
dustrial Liberator espoused the
doctrines of the Greenback party
of the 8¢’s. The Vim was a comic
weekly magazine in the early
90’s and was printed on a litho-
graph press, which McPherson
then boasted.

S. G. Mead was a printer in his
youth, taught school and served
a term as state superintendent of
Indiana schools. In 1868 he came
to Kansas and established the
Herald at Kureka. In 1879 he
bhought the McPherson Independ-
ent with Frank 8. Presbhy and
changed the name. Preshffy was
with Mead only about a year and
then went to New York, when un-
til recent years he conducted a
very successful advertising agen-
cy. Mead’s next partner was H.
E. Watkins, who soon gave way
to Henry Conklin and he in 1881
sold his interest to Mead, who
then bhecame the sole owner. In
1887 Mead established the Mec-
Pherson Daily Republican. May
1, 1899, he sold his business to
W. J. Krehbiel. K. R. Krehbiel
purchased the paper in 1944,

McPherson, in 1899, was in the
depths of the depression that fol-
lowed the hoom of 1883 when Mc-
Pherson had street cars, boasted a
population of 12,000 and fright-
ened the legislature with its ef-
fort to move the state capital
from Topeka to McPherson.

In 1899 the only evidence left
of those pristine days were the
street railway bridge on East
Kansas Avenue, the street car
barns at the corner of Kansas
Avenue and Elmn. street and a few
railroad tieb that - persisted in

Working to-the surtace.of the mud

streets that had borne the load of
the - railway’s . human freight.
True, there were. some imposing
business buildings of which the
most conspicuous. today is the old
Opera House at® Sutherland and
Main, . There were also -some
splendid residences but the glam-
our of ascendency was ‘gone. Mc-
Pherson people knew how to take
their misfortune.  They tightened
pinched ‘everywhere,.
and by ‘the turn. of:the century
were again on the march. From
then until today MecPherson has
steadily gone forward until today
it can look anyone of them in the
Tace and rejoice at its accomp-
lishments,



